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ABOUT  THE  COVER
As Southeast Asian countries unite into one single region, CARD 
Mutually Reinforcing Institutions (CARD MRI) continues to synergize 
to bring socioeconomically challenged women, their families and their 
community a holistic approach to development. CARD MRI Insurance 
Agency, Inc. (CaMIA) is CARD Mutually Reinforcing Institutions’ arm 
that provides life and non-life insurance products.        

Each client in the covers of the annual reports represent an institution, 
completing a  bigger picture. The blue, red, and yellow waves merge 
and unify the institution, signifying how the economic integration made 
our institutions stronger and united as a group.

Roselyn Mayuga received a 150,000-peso claim after her husband 
passed away because of a vehicular accident. She is one of CaMIA’s more 
than 605,000 policy holders who is now ready to grab the opportunities 
and face the challenges of the ASEAN Economic Integration.
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viSION mission
To become top-of-mind insurance agency of 
Micro-insurance products and services.

To provide life and non-life insurance products 
and services in real-time at the most affordable 
premium rate to client-members of CARD MRI and 
its affiliates.
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The establishment of the ASEAN Integration welcomed 
free trade among 10 countries. While it will provide 
more opportunities for CaMIA, we do not discount the 
possibilities of facing several challenges for our institution. 
No one could be sure how intense the business competition 
would be, given the more advanced business practices 
and the deep pockets of our major ASEAN neighbors. But 
we, as a part of the whole CARD MRI, put our faith and 
confidence in the strength of the whole CARD system.

NEW BUT READY
As the ASEAN community opens its economic borders, 
business opportunities and threats will be forthcoming. 
The microinsurance industry will have a tight competition 
among its players. Furthermore, oversaturation among 
businesses threatens other small businesses to cease 
their operations as more big players enter the industry. 
Advanced products at lower premiums and other 
offerings will be laid on the table. Foreign businesses that 
will venture in our country have bigger capitals and thus 
can bring with them better technologies.

Despite these international competitors having more 
resources than we do, we are confident that we can 
compete well because of our strengths: we belong to 
a group of institutions that capitalize on our in-depth 
knowledge of local culture; we are an organization 
that truly understands and listens to the needs of our 
clients; and we have an army of dedicated staff who 
believe in visionary leadership and who zealously try 
to lift themselves up and their community by their own 
bootstraps.  

CaMIA may still be considered a relatively new player 
in the insurance industry as it was only established in 
2007. Despite this apparent handicap and despite the 
expected fearsome competition from foreign players, our 

advantage is that we are local; and because we are, we know the 
environment and culture that surround us. We know the people 
and their needs, as well. For years, we have immersed ourselves 
with the people, and that is our advantage.

CONTINUING OUR SERVICE
Our products are always a response to what our clients need. 
When calamities strike, we always make sure that our clients can 
still find hope amidst uncertainties. This year, we continued to 
provide our clients with their insurance benefits the fastest way 
we could.  We continue to raise the bar so that we can improve 
our services more.

The launching of our SAGIP Plan is another highlight of our 
institution for the past year. SAGIP Plan is a 3-in-1 family insurance 
package. For only PhP 2,000, the plan includes coverage on 
personal accident, funeral assistance, and re-housing. We were 
able to provide 59,176 SAGIP Plans to our clients.

Turn to page 8

SAGIP Plan and Kabuklod Plan were launched

A CUT
ABOVE  THE REST
roselito a. magpantay
General Manager
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Twenty two years of marriage, 2 kids and a home; these 
are my most treasured gems in this world.

We were living a happy and normal life. I was working 
in Riyadh, Saudi Arabia to help in sustaining my families’ 
needs while my husband, Leonides Mayuga, was residing 
here in the Philippines to supervise and take care of our 
two children. He was a tricycle driver and his earnings 
were added to our monthly budget. Our two kids were 
studying and were both in college.

Life was perfectly normal until the unthinkable happened. 
One of my precious gems was taken away from me. On the 
8th of November 2015, my beloved husband, with whom 
I have shared 22 years of my life, figured in an accident 
while he was driving his tricycle. An elf truck carrying 
sacks of palay hit his vehicle in our baranggay in Victoria, 
Laguna. In that moment, with just a blink of an eye, my 
husband was taken away from us forever. Our world was 
shaken and it felt like there was nothing that could make 
our situation better.

PREPARED DURING UNCERTAINTIES
During the time that we felt most vulnerable, we also 
came to know those whom we can rely on. One of 
them is our family in CaMIA. My sister-in-law, who is a 
Microinsurance Agent, convinced me and my husband to 
buy insurance from CaMIA. Some of us shun the idea of 
insurance because the idea of accidents and deaths seem 
to be elusive when we are well and healthy. But when the 
unpredictable hits us, that is when we will know that it is 
better to be prepared during uncertainties.

One can never be prepared for the passing of a loved one, but at 
least having some assurance that we can recover from a tragedy 
is something to be grateful for. Funeral expenses here in the 
Philippines can be very costly and receiving the benefit from 
CaMIA has been a great relief for our family. In a matter of five 
days, we were given our benefit when we handed our marriage 
contract.

Instead of using money from our savings or borrowing from 
different people, the P150,000 we received from CaMIA already 
covered everything. We paid in cash and did not owe anyone 
even a single peso. Some of the money left even covered our 
daily expenses as I was not able to go back to my job abroad 
immediately.

INCOMPARABLE SERVICE
CaMIA’s dedication to provide insurance to communities is 
nothing but commendable. With our experience with them, I 
can only feel their sincerity in fulfilling their mission to help the 
CARD clients and their families get the assurance they need in 
times of difficulties. 

Their hard work to change the Filipino’s perception on insurance 
is also admirable. I would like to think that even though my 
husband passed away at a time when we least expected it, 
he also became an instrument in CaMIA’s mission of opening 
the minds of Filipinos about insurance. After his death, a lot of 
our neighbors saw the value of insurance. With this, I have the 
peace of mind that more and more families in the Philippines 
will have the assurance in times of uncertainties.

roselyn  mayuga
CARD Bank member from Laguna who availed CaMIA’s 
products

MY MOST TREASURED GEMS
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From page 6

TOGETHER WE CAN
With the help of other institutions belonging to CARD MRI, 
CaMIA will continue to innovate and develop products that 
are responsive to the needs of our clients.  We will continue 
to leverage on its considerable experience in the insurance 
industry and look for ways to cut costs of doing business, 
improve operational efficiency, and optimize its position as a 
support function to CARD’s core business. 

An example of CaMIA’s innovative approach is a program that 
aims to convert “savers” to “borrowers”, by encouraging savers’ 
attendance to a product-offering seminar where non-life 
insurance products will be discussed.  Attendance is generated 

Marketing collateral (fliers) for promotion 
of CaMIA products

eCaMIA Claims Online, a common claims database and 
monitoring tool for CaMIA, CARD MBA & CPMI was developed

by giving a free personal accident insurance to those who 
show up and listen to CaMIA’s product roadshow.  However, 
this program could only be cost-effective if bigger institutions 
would support CaMIA’s participation.  This bigger institution 
was, in fact, CARD MBA which conducts its own Microinsurance 
Caravan.  CaMIA was simply fortunate to have been given by 
CARD MBA space and support in the Caravan.

CaMIA very well knows it cannot pursue its mission by itself 
alone. It has to enhance its business partnership with CARD 
MBA, CPMI and with the microfinance institutions of CARD 
MRI, if it wants to succeed.  CaMIA knows what it has to do, 
and it will try its best in its role of providing a more complete 
financial safety net to those who need it the most.

Elshielyn Cabral
CARD Bank, Inc. member who availed CaMIA’s products

I didn’t see it coming. A fire caused by an electrical mishap took 
almost everything from me and my family. It was an almost 
hopeless case because everything we acquired turned to ashes. 
Because the fire burned most of our documents including my 
claim stub, CaMIA made its policy flexible but still acceptable 
to the regulatory body so we can still claim our P28,000 benefit 
without many documentary requirements. I am very grateful to 
CaMIA for giving me and my family the chance to rebuild our 
home where we can continue living our lives happily.

Estella Magdame
CaMIA’s client

A typhoon’s damage is surely unpredictable. It was in July 2015 
when a typhoon hit my humble home and damaged our roof. My 
situation was quite simple for others but for me, it was a serious 
problem because we are financially challenged. It was a relief 
that the damages were covered by my insurance from CaMIA. I 
am very satisfied with their quick and quality service. It took just 
a day to assess the damage and to release my benefits.
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STAFF  DEVELOPMENT

Our General Manager, Mr. Roselito A. Magpantay, attended Asia and Oceania 
Association (AOA) Seminar in Wellington, New Zealand. Also, our Assistant 
Deputy Director for Admin and Finance, Ms. Lailanie L. Moral, participated in 
a Market Research for U-Life in Bangkok, Thailand. We have also conducted a 
Sales and Admin Assistant Refresher Training in Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao.

ON SAGIP PLAN & other non-life  
insurance products

We were able to conduct SAGIP Plan caravans in Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao to further 
promote our products. The SAGIP Plan module was also developed to become a part of 
CARD MRI Credit with Education. Moreover, the SAGIP Plan was made available to  relatives 
of CARD MRI staff through CARD Employee Multipurpose Cooperative (EMPC) loan.

In addition, we have developed and implemented Daily Insurance Online Tool, a common 
database of CaMIA, Human Resources and Organizational & Administrative Group for all 
insurance coverage of CARD MRI employees. Selling of Funeral Care Plan (FCAP) in units 
and micro banking offices covered by CARD MBA provincial offices in Luzon 3 and 4 Clusters 
was also implemented.

On one hand, partnerships with Pioneer Life and Pioneer Insurance and Surety Corporation 
were formed for the Group Life Insurance of CARD MRI employees and for Directors and 
Officers (D&O) Liability Insurance, respectively. We have also completed renewals for SAGIP 
Plan and Funeral Care of all CARD MRI employees.
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OUR
management   COMMITTEE

May S. Dawat
Chairperson

Wilfredo M. Llanto
President

Atty. Clifford C. Burkley
Director

Marilyn M. Manila
Director

Deverna dT. Briones
Corporate Treasurer

Elma B. Valenzuela
Director

Vener S. Abellera
Director

Alejandro C. Mangulabnan
Director

Dr. Enrique L. Navarro
Corporate Secretary

OUR
BOARD  MEMBERS

Jaime Aristotle B. Alip
Ex-officio member

Dolores M. Torres
Ex-officio member

Lorenza dT. Bañez
Ex-officio member

Flordeliza L. Sarmiento
Ex-officio member

Aristeo A. Dequito
Ex-officio member
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OUR
management   COMMITTEE

Lailanie L. Moral
Assistant Deputy Director for Admin & Finance

Allan Rey L. Sarmiento
Sales & Marketing Manager

Ely B. Rodriguez
Assistant Deputy Director for Sales & Marketing

Jennelyn M. Meneses
Senior Admin & Finance Officer

Mr. Roselito A. Magpantay
General Manager

Christine P. Cosinas
Assistant Finance Officer
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our partners

BLUE CROSS

BPI/MS

COCOLIFE

PIONEER INSURANCE

SUNLIFE FINANCIAL

UCPB GEN

RIMANSI MUTUAL SOLUTIONS
INSURANCE AGENCY, INC.

CARD PIONEER MICROINSURANCE, INC.
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AUDITED   FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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*SGVFS017979* 

CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 
 
 
  December 31 
 2015 2014 

ASSETS   
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Notes 6, 13 and 16) P36,562,605 P22,207,624 
Financial Assets (Notes 7 and 16)   
 Loans and Receivables 109,263,105 116,876,062 
 Available for Sale Financial Assets  13,222,655 12,021,246 
Property and Equipment - net (Note 8) 643,061 4,541,615 
Investment Property (Notes 9 and 16) 8,970,346 – 
Deferred Tax Assets - net (Note 15) 506,655 623,369 
Other Current Assets (Note 10) 2,746,783 3,466,005 

 P=171,915,210 P=159,735,921 
   

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY   

Liabilities   
Trade and other payables (Notes 11 and 16) P142,051,598 P=137,334,770 
Pension liability - net (Note 14) 257,859 1,652,809 
 142,309,457 138,987,579 

Equity (Notes 12 and 16)   
Capital stock 17,656,000 9,510,000 
Deposits for future stock subscription – 4,412,000 
Retained earnings 12,581,626 8,185,984 
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plan (Note 14) (631,873) (1,359,642) 
 29,605,753 20,748,342 

 P=171,915,210 P=159,735,921 
   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
 
 
 Years Ended December 31 
 2015 2014 

REVENUE   
Commission income (Note 18) P50,844,506 P=29,515,730 
Interest income (Notes 6 and 7) 779,357 465,816 
Reversal of provision for impairment losses (Note 7) – 80 
Other income 17,893 338,812 
 51,641,756  30,320,438 

EXPENSES   
Underwriting expenses  15,949,897 5,136,435 
Training and development 6,546,702 4,521,770 
Transportation and travel 5,471,741 2,359,036 
Salaries and allowances 3,698,960 3,419,767 
Information technology expense 1,461,841 169,159 
Program monitoring and evaluation 1,122,137 854,301 
Security and janitorial 744,964 344,402 
Supplies 595,337 691,336 
Professional fees 530,281 214,965 
Pension expense (Note 14) 364,142 597,194 
Depreciation (Note 8) 323,940 436,768 
Insurance 295,478 275,333 
Rent (Note 17) 187,263 131,316 
Taxes and licenses 168,600 200,248 
Communication and postage 152,140 165,955 
Light and water 141,169 133,165 
Repairs and maintenance    101,396 179,530 
Interest expense (Notes 14 and 8) 75,089 221,165 
Provision for impairment losses (Note 7) 65,424 273,087 
Representation and entertainment 29,070 35,172 
Advertising and promotion 16,096 12,500 
Other expenses 100,999 729,895 
 38,142,666 21,102,499 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 13,499,090 9,217,939 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 15) 3,990,998 3,231,419 

NET INCOME P=9,508,092 P=5,986,520 
   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.  
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CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
 
 
 Years Ended December 31 
 2015 2014 

NET INCOME P9,508,092 P5,986,520 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME   
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods:   
 Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan (Note 14) 1,039,670 1,993,231 
Income tax effect (311,901) (597,969) 
 727,769 1,395,262 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P=10,235,861 P=7,381,782 
   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
 
 
 

 Capital Stock 
Appropriated 

Retained 

Unappropriated 
Retained 
Earnings 

Remeasurement 
Loss on Defined 

Benefit Plan 

Deposits for 
Future Stock 
Subscription  

 (Notes 12 and 16) Earnings (Notes 12 and 16) (Note 14) (Notes 12 and 16) Total 
At January 1, 2015 P=9,510,000 P=– P=8,185,984 (P=1,359,642) P=4,412,000 P=20,748,342 
Issuance of shares:       
 Transfer from deposits for future stock 

subscription 4,412,000 – – – (4,412,000) – 
 Additional infusion during the year 3,734,000 – – – – 3,734,000 
Dividends – – (5,112,450) – – (5,112,450) 
Total comprehensive income       
 Net income – – 9,508,092 – – 9,508,092 
 Other comprehensive income – – – 727,769 – 727,769 
At December 31, 2015 P=17,656,000 P=– P=12,581,626 (P=631,873) P=– P=29,605,753 
       
At January 1, 2014 P=9,500,000 P=– P=5,049,464 (P=2,754,904) P=1,770,500 P=13,565,060 
Deposits during the year – – – – 2,651,500 2,651,500 
Issuance of shares - transfer from deposits for  

future stock subscription 10,000 – – –    (10,000)     – 
Dividends – – (2,850,000) – – (2,850,000) 
Total comprehensive income       
 Net income – – 5,986,520   – – 5,986,520 
 Other comprehensive income – – – 1,395,262 – 1,395,262 
At December 31, 2014 P=9,510,000 P=– P=8,185,984 (P=1,359,642) P=4,412,000 P=20,748,342 
       
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
 
 
 Years Ended December 31 
 2015 2014 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Income before income tax P=13,499,090 P=9,217,939 
Adjustments for:   
 Interest income (Notes 6 and 7) (779,357) (465,816) 
 Pension expense (Note 14) 364,142 597,194 
 Depreciation (Note 8) 323,940 436,768 
 Interest expense 75,089 221,165 
 Provision for impairment losses - net (Note 7)   65,424 273,007 
 Loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities (Note 7) 15,316 – 
Operating income before working capital changes 13,563,644 10,280,257 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   
Decrease in:   
 Receivables  9,005,527 2,832,503 
 Other current assets  719,222 213,903 
Increase in trade and other payables 4,716,828 13,345,760 
Net cash generated from operations 28,005,221 26,672,423 
Contributions made to the fund (Note 14) (786,045) (1,411,052) 
Interest paid (8,466) – 
Income tax paid (4,186,185) (2,888,735) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 23,024,525 22,372,636 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
Interest received 521,363 238,002 
Acquisitions of:   
 Investment property (Notes 9 and 19) (5,075,000) – 
 Short term investments (Note 7) (1,200,000) – 
 Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 7) (1,242,175) (1,000,000) 
 Property and equipment (Note 8) (320,732) (3,918,844) 
Proceeds from disposals of available for sale financial assets 

(Note 7) 25,450 – 
Net cash used in investing activities (7,291,094) (4,680,842) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Additional capital infusion 3,734,000 – 
Deposit for future stock subscription – 2,651,500 
Dividends paid (Note 14) (5,112,450) (2,850,000) 
Net cash used in financing activities (1,378,450) (198,500) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14,354,981 17,493,294 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT  
BEGINNING OF YEAR 22,207,624 4,714,330 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALNTS AT  
END OF YEAR (Note 6) P=36,562,605 P=22,207,624 

   
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
1. Corporate Information 
 

CARD MRI Insurance Agency, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and 
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 2, 2007 
primarily to engage in the business of selling life and non life insurance and other related services.  
36.70% of the Company’s common stock is owned by CARD Inc., a social development 
incorporated in the Philippines.   

 
The registered office address of the Company is M. L. Quezon St., City Subdivision, San Pablo 
City, Laguna. 

 
The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors 
(BOD) on March 12, 2016. 

 
 
2. Basis of Preparation 
 

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost 
basis.  The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P=), the Company’s functional 
and presentation currency.  All amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso, unless otherwise 
indicated. 

 
Statement of Compliance 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 
 
The Company qualifies as a Small and Medium-sized Entity (SME) as set forth in the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC) En Banc Resolution dated August 13, 2009 and therefore is 
required to use the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) for SMEs. However, the 
Company is a holder of secondary license issued by Insurance Commission (IC) that made the 
Company qualify as large and/or publicly-accountable entity.  Large and/or publicly-accountable 
entities shall use as their financial reporting framework the PFRS as adopted by the SEC.  

 
 
3. Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 
  

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for 
the following new and amended PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine 
Interpretations which became effective on January 1, 2015. Except as otherwise indicated, the 
adoption of these new accounting standards and amendments have no material impact on the 
Company’s financial statements.  

 PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments) 
 Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle)  

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary 
amendments to the following standards: 
 PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition  
 PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business 

Combination 
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 PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of 
the Total of the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets 

 PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation 
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation 

 PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel 
 PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of 

Accumulated Amortization 
 Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)  

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary 
amendments to the following standards: 
 PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements 
 PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception 
 PAS 40, Investment Property 

 
There are new PFRS, amendments, annual improvements and interpretations to existing standards 
that are effective for periods subsequent to 2015 and these will be adopted on their effectivity 
dates in accordance with the transition provisions. Except as otherwise stated, these amendments 
and improvements to PFRS and new standard are not expected to have any significant impact on 
the Company’s financial statements. 

 
Effective in 2016 
 PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification of 

Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments) 
 PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants 

(Amendments) 
 PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 

(Amendments) 
 PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other 

Entities, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Investment Entities: 
Applying the Consolidation Exception 

 PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 
(Amendments) 

 PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts 
 Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) 

 PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in 
Methods of Disposal (Amendments) 

 PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts (Amendments) 
 PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial 

Statements (Amendments) 
 PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate 

(Amendments) 
 PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information “Elsewhere in the 

Interim Financial Report” (Amendments) 
 

Effective in 2018 
 PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and 

PAS 39 (2013 version) 
 PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or final version) 

 IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
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IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to 
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an 
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more 
structured approach to measuring and recognizing revenue.  The new revenue standard is 
applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under 
IFRS.  Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted.   
 
IFRS 15 is a significant change from current IFRS.  Although it provides more detailed 
application guidance, entities will need to use more judgment in applying its requirements, in 
part, because the use of estimates is more extensive. 
 
The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new 
standard on the required effective date, once adopted locally. 

 
Effective in 2019 
 IFRS 16, Leases 

On January 13, 2016, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued its new 
standard, IFRS 16, Leases, which replaces International Accounting Standards (IAS) 17, the 
current leases standard, and the related Interpretations.  Under the new standard, lessees will no 
longer classify their leases as either operating or finance leases in accordance with IAS 17. 
Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model. Under this model, lessees will recognize the 
assets and related liabilities for most leases in their balance sheets, and subsequently, will 
depreciate the lease assets and recognize interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. 
Leases with a term of 12 months or less or for which the underlying asset is of low value are 
exempted from these requirements. 
 
The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the 
principles of lessor accounting under IAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose 
more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual 
value. 
 
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. 
Entities may early adopt IFRS 16 but only if they have also adopted IFRS 15, Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers. When adopting IFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full 
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach, with options to use certain transition 
reliefs.  The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 and plans to adopt the new 
standard on the required effective date, once adopted locally. 

 
 
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. 

 
Financial Instruments 
Date of recognition 
Financial instruments are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  Purchases or sales of financial 
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assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention 
in the marketplace are recognized on the trade date. 

 
Initial recognition of financial instruments 
Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration given (in case of an 
asset) or received (in case of a liability).  Except for financial instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs.  The 
Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and receivables and AFS 
investment (under other assets).  The Company classifies its financial liabilities into other 
financial liabilities.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial 
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every end of the 
reporting period. 

 
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s financial instruments are of the nature of AFS 
financial assets, loans and receivables.  

 
Fair Value Measurement 
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 
 
 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company. 

 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. 

 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
 Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
 Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement is unobservable 
 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 
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Day 1 profit 
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique 
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference 
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit) in statement of comprehensive 
income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset.  In cases where an 
unobservable data is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only 
recognized in statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become observable or when the 
instrument is derecognized.  For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate 
method of recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit amount.  

 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities that are not quoted in an active market.  They are not entered into with the intention of 
immediate or short-term resale and are not classified as financial assets held for trading, 
designated as AFS or FVPL.  This accounting policy relates to the “Cash ”, “and “Receivables” 
account. 
 
Loans and receivables include shot-term and long-term investments.   
 
Short-term investments are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with original maturities of more than three months but less than one year 
from dates of placement.  These earn interests at the respective short-term investment rates.   
 
Long-term investments are investments that are convertible to known amounts of cash with 
original maturities of more than one year from dates of placement.  These earn interest at the 
respective long-term investment rates. 

 
AFS investments 
AFS investments are those which are designated as such or do not qualify to be classified as 
designated at FVPL, HTM or loans and receivables.  They are purchased and held indefinitely, 
and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions. 
After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at cost.  Dividends earned 
on holding AFS investments are recognized in statement of comprehensive income when the right 
to receive the payment has been established.  The unrealized gains and losses arising from the fair 
valuation of AFS investments are reported in other comprehensive income.  The losses arising 
from impairment of such investments are recognized in statement of comprehensive income.  
When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income is recognized as realized gains or losses in statement of comprehensive 
income.  When the Company holds more than one investment in the same security, the cost is 
determined using the weighted average method. 

 
When the fair value of AFS investments cannot be measured reliably because of lack of reliable 
estimates of future cash flows and discount rates necessary to calculate the fair value of unquoted 
equity instruments, these investments are carried at cost. 

 
Other financial liabilities 
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL are classified 
as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the 
Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to 
satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.  
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After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.  
Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

 
This accounting policy applies primarily to the Company’s “Trade and other payables” and other 
obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities covered by other accounting 
standards such as income tax payable and net pension liability). 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is objective evidence that 
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. 

 
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is 
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and 
where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 

Loans and Receivables 
For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether objective 
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively 
for financial assets that are not individually significant.  If the Company determines that no 
objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial asset, whether 
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk 
characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. 

Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account and the amount of loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.  
Receivables, together with the associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized.  If, in a subsequent period, 
the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. 

Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the 
reversal date. 

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate.  Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not 
material.  If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss 
is the current effective interest rate, adjusted for the original credit risk premium.  The calculation 



CARD MRI  insurance agency,  inc. Annual  Report   201524 CARD MRI  insurance agency, inc. Annual  Report   2015- 7 - 
 
 

*SGVFS017979* 

of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset reflects 
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, 
whether or not foreclosure is probable. 

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis 
of credit risk characteristics such as type of borrower, collateral type, past-due status and term. 

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are 
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar 
to those in the group.  Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data 
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss 
experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist 
currently.  The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed 
regularly by the Company to reduce any difference between loss estimates and actual loss 
experience. 

AFS investments carried at cost 
If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is 
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset 
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instrument has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return 
for a similar financial asset. 

Offsetting of Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
Financial Asset  
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognized where: 

 the right to receive cash flows from the asset has  expired; 
 the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an 

obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; or 

 the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 
asset. 

Where the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control 
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the 
asset. 

 
Financial Liability 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled or has expired.  Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
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same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in statement of comprehensive income. 

 
Investment Property 
Investment Properties are properties (land and/or buildings) held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation (or both). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction 
costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at cost with disclosures of 
the investment property fair value at year-end. 
 
It is derecognized when either it has been disposed of, or when it is permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the disposal 
is recognized in the profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal. 

 
Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization and 
any impairment in value. 

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including nonrefundable 
taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location 
for its intended use.  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as 
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All 
other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the 
financial period in which they are incurred. 

 
Depreciation on computer equipment, office furniture and fixture and transportation equipment is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life (EUL).  

 
 Years 
Transportation equipment 5 
Computer and office equipment 3 
Office furniture and fixtures 3 

 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further 
charge for depreciation is made with respect to these assets. 

The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to 
ensure that the period and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the 
expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment. 

When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related 
accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated provision for impairment losses, if 
any, are removed from the accounts.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assets, 
which is calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 
the asset, is included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is 
derecognized. 
 
Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets 
The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is an indication that 
property and equipment may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when annual 



CARD MRI  insurance agency,  inc. Annual  Report   201526 CARD MRI  insurance agency, inc. Annual  Report   2015- 9 - 
 
 

*SGVFS017979* 

impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s 
recoverable amount.  An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets or groups of assets.  Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, 
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. 

An assessment is made at each end of the reporting period as to whether there is any indication 
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously recognized impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If that is the case, the carrying amount of 
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased amount cannot exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is recognized in statement of 
comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is 
treated as a revaluation increase.  After such reversal the depreciation charge is adjusted in future 
periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic 
basis over its remaining useful life. 

 
Creditable Withholding Taxes (CWTs) 
Creditable withholding pertains to the tax paid by the Company that is withheld by its 
counterparty for the payment of its expenses and other purchases.  These CWTs are initially 
recorded at cost as an asset under “Other assets” account.   
 
At each end of the tax-reporting deadline, these CWTs may either be offset against future tax 
income payable or be claimed as a refund from the taxation authorities at the option of the 
Company.  At each end of the reporting period, an assessment for impairment is performed as to 
the recoverability of these CWTs. 

 
Net pension liability 
The net pension liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any), 
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net benefit asset to the asset ceiling.  The asset ceiling is the 
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or 
reductions in future contributions to the plan. 

 
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the 
projected unit credit method. 
Defined benefit costs comprise the following: 
 Service cost 
 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset 
 Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset 
 
Service costs which include current service cost, past service cost and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss.  Past service costs are recognized 
when plan amendment or curtailment occurs.  These amounts are calculated periodically by 
independent qualified actuaries. 
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Net interest on the net defined pension liability or asset is the change during the period in the net 
defined pension liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by 
applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined pension liability or asset.  
Net interest on the net defined pension liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in 
profit or loss. 

 
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in 
the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined pension liability) are recognized 
immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  Remeasurements 
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

 
Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance 
policies.  Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid 
directly to the Company.  Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information.  When no 
market price is available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future 
cash flows using a discount rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the 
maturity or expected disposal date of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected 
period until the settlement of the related obligations).  If the fair value of the plan assets is higher 
than the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined 
benefit asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds 
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. 

 
Equity 
Capital stock is recognized as issued when the stock is paid for or subscribed under a binding 
subscription agreement and is measured at par value.  When the shares are sold at a premium, the 
difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to Additional Paid-in Capital 
account.  Share issuance costs incurred as necessary part of completing an equity transaction are 
accounted for as part of that transaction and are treated as a deduction from Additional Paid-in 
Capital from previous share issuance.  If the Additional Paid-in Capital account is not sufficient, 
the excess is deducted from retained earnings. 

 
Deposits for future stock subscription (DFFSS) refer to the amount received by the Company as a 
deposit with the possibility of applying the same as payment for the future issuance of capital 
stock.  DFFSS is classified as liability if the increase in authorized capital stock has not yet been 
applied to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  Otherwise, this is classified under 
equity.  

Revenue 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.  The following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

 
Commission income 
The Company recognizes commission income based on premium billings upon rendition of 
services to the insured and upon issuance of policies by the insurer.  Premiums due from insured 
are collectible by the Company for the account of the insurer and are remittable to them within the 
credit term. 

Interest income 
Interest income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as it accrues, taking into 
account the effective yield of the asset. 
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Other income 
Income from other sources is recognized when earned. 

 
General and Administrative Expenses 
Expense is recognized when decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset 
or an increase of a liability has arisen and expense can be measured reliably.  Expenses are 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as they are incurred. 

 
Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of 
the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the 
asset.  A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies: 

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement; 
b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or 

extension was initially included in the lease term; 
c. There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset 

or; 
d. There is a substantial change to the asset. 

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the 
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the 
date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b). 

 
Company as a lessee 
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases.  Fixed lease payments are recognized as an expense in the company 
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis. 

 
Income Tax 
Current tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
reporting period. 

 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the 
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for 
financial reporting purposes. 

 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset 
revaluations.  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the 
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized.  Deferred tax, however, is not recognized on temporary 
differences that arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor 
taxable income or loss. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of the reporting period and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to 
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allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are 
reassessed at each end of the reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the period 
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.  Movements in the deferred tax 
assets and liabilities arising from changes in tax rates are charged against or credited to income for 
the period. 

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognized as other comprehensive income is also 
recognized in the company statement of other comprehensive income. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set 
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes related to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation.  Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, 
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain.  The expense relating to any provision is presented in the 
statement of income, net of any reimbursement.  If the effect of the time value of money is 
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the 
risks specific to the liability.  Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 
passage of time is recognized as an interest expense. 

 
Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the company financial statements but are disclosed 
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  
Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the Company financial statements when 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

 
Events after the End of the Reporting Period 
Any post year-end event that provides additional information about the Company’s position at the 
end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial statements.  Post year-end 
events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material to the financial statements. 

 
 
5. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions 

The preparation of the accompanying Company financial statements in accordance with PFRS 
requires the Company to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the 
Company’s financial statements and accompanying notes.  The estimates and assumptions used in 
the accompanying Company financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of 
relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Company’s financial statements.  Actual 
results could differ from such estimates. 
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Judgments 
Classification of financial assets 
The Company classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted 
or not in an active market.  Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an 
active market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, 
and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s-
length basis. 
 
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee 
The Company has entered into a contract of lease for the office space it occupies.  The Company 
has determined that all significant risks and rewards of ownership on these properties will be 
retained by the lessor. 

 
Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied properties 
The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment property.  In making its 
judgment, the Company considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent 
of the other assets held by an entity.  Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are 
attributable not only to property but also to the other assets used in the daily operations of the 
Company. 
 
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and 
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes.  If these portions cannot be sold separately at the reporting date, the 
property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in 
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.  Judgment is applied 
in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as 
investment property.  The Company considers each property separately in making its judgment. 

 
Management’s Use of Estimates  
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at each 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

Estimation of allowance for impairment losses of receivables 
The Company maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to 
provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  The level of this allowance is evaluated by 
management on the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts.  These factors 
include, but are not limited to, age of balances, financial status of counterparties, and legal opinion 
on recoverability in case of legal disputes.  The Company reviews the age and status of 
receivables, and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance on a regular basis. 

The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Company made 
different judgments or utilized different estimates.  An increase in allowance for impairment 
losses would increase recorded expenses and decrease the related asset accounts. 

 
The carrying value of receivables, net of impairment losses, amounted to P=101,235,294 and  
P=110,115,507 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (Note 7).  The related allowance 
for impairment losses amounted to P=410,431 and P= 345,007 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively (Note 7) 
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Estimation of useful lives of property and equipment 
The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on the 
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use.  It is possible that future results 
of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates.  A reduction in the 
estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded depreciation and 
decrease the related asset accounts. 

 
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying value of property and equipment amounted to  
P=643,061 and P=4,541,615, respectively (Note 8). 

 
Impairment of nonfinancial assets 
The Company assesses the impairment of its nonfinancial assets (i.e., property and equipment) 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may 
not be recoverable.  The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an 
impairment review include the following: 

 significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating 
results; 

 significant changes in the manner of use of the assets; and 
 significant negative industry or economic trends. 

The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 
its recoverable amount.  Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual asset or, if it is not 
possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company has not recognized any impairment loss on its 
nonfinancial assets. 

Recognition of deferred tax assets 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable income will be available against which these can be utilized.  Significant 
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be 
recognized.  These assets are periodically reviewed for realization.  Periodic reviews cover the 
nature and amount of deferred income and expense items, expected timing when assets will be 
used or liabilities will be required to be reported, reliability of historical profitability of businesses 
expected to provide future earnings and tax planning strategies which can be utilized to increase 
the likelihood that tax assets will be realized. 

 
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s net deferred tax assets amounted to P=506,655 
and P=623,368, respectively (Note 15) 

 
Retirement and other employee benefits 
The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post employment benefits as well as the 
present value of the pension obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.  The actuarial 
valuation involves making various assumptions.  These include the determination of the discount 
rates, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.  Due to the complexity 
of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, defined benefit obligations 
are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.  All assumptions are reviewed at each 
reporting date.  The net benefit liability amounted to P=169,375 and P=1,652,809 as at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  Further details are provided in Note 14. 

 



CARD MRI  insurance agency,  inc. Annual  Report   201532 CARD MRI  insurance agency, inc. Annual  Report   2015- 15 - 
 
 

*SGVFS017979* 

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of 
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with 
extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.  

 
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and is 
modified accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements.  Future salary increases and 
pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the specific. 

 
 
6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
This account consists of: 
 

 2015 2014 
Cash on hand P=303,307 P=262,680 
Cash in banks 34,240,096 21,944,944 
Cash equivalents 2,019,202 – 
 P=36,562,605 P=22,207,624 

 
Cash in banks and cash equivalents earn interest that ranged from 0.25% to 1.50% in 2015 and in 
2014.  Interest income earned from cash in banks and cash equivalents amounted to P=514,371 and 
P=181,050 in 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 
 

7. Financial Assets 
 

The Company’s financial assets are summarized by measurement categories as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Loans and receivables - net P109,263,103 P116,876,062 
Available-for-sale financial assets 13,222,655 12,021,246 
 P122,485,758 P128,897,308 

 
 Loans and Receivables 

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s loans and receivables are as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Receivables - net P101,235,294 P110,115,507 
Short term investments (Notes 13 and 16) 5,027,811 3,760,555 
Long term investments (Notes 13 and 16) 3,000,000 3,000,000 
 P109,263,105 P116,876,062 
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Receivables - net 
This account consists of: 

 
 2015 2014 
Accounts receivable   
Related parties (Note 13) P=74,899,134 P=79,202,895 
Others  20,821,999 15,029,762 
Commissions receivable    
Related party (Note 13) 5,104,660 14,448,055 
Others 276,943 1,427,551 
Interest receivable 542,989 352,251 
 101,645,725 110,460,514 
Allowance for impairment losses (410,431) (345,007) 
 P=101,235,294 P=110,115,507 

 
Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing and are generally on 1-30 day terms.  These mostly 
consist of receivables from CARD Mutual Benefit Association, Inc. (CARD MBA) for unremitted 
premiums and receivables from CARD Pioneer Micro insurance Inc. (CPMI) for claims that have 
been advanced by the Company to beneficiaries on behalf of CPMI.  Other accounts receivable 
represent unremitted premiums other than insurance coverage under CPMI and advanced claims 
on behalf of other insurers not related to the Company. 
 
Commissions receivable are non-interest-bearing and are generally on 1-30 day terms.  These 
consist mostly of receivables from CPMI for commissions on insurance products sold (Sagip Plan, 
Package Assistance in Case of Disaster (PAID) plan and CARD Care). 
 
Interest receivable pertains mainly to interest accrued arising from cash and cash equivalents and 
short-term investments. 

 
 Allowance for impairment loss 

The rollforward analyses of allowance for impairment losses on accounts receivable follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Balance at January 1 P=345,007 P=72,000 
Provisions 65,424 273,087 
Reversals – (80) 
Balance at December 31  P=410,431  P=345,007 

 
Short-term investments 
Short-term investments are short-term time deposit placements in CARD Bank, CARD SME and 
Rizal Bank Inc. with original maturities of three (3) months to twelve (12) months and earned 
interest at 2.00% to 4.25% and 3.00% to 3.75% in 2015 and 2014, respectively.   
 
The rollforward analysis of short-term investments follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Balance at January 1 P3,760,555 P3,668,630 
Additions 1,200,000 – 
Interest income earned 67,256 91,925 
Balance at December 31 P5,027,811 P3,760,555 
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Interest income earned from short-term investments amounted to P=84,986 and P=104,766 in 2015 
and 2014, respectively. 
 
Long-term investment 
Long term investment pertains to time deposit placement in CARD Bank with a term of five (5) 
years, face amount of P=3,000,000 and earning interest at 6.00% per annum.  If withdrawn before 
maturity, this shall earn interest based on the prevailing interest rate of CARD Bank for regular 
deposits.  Interest income earned in 2015 and 2014 amounted to P=180,000.  

 
Available-for-sale Financial Assets 
The rollforward analyses of this acount follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Balance at January 1 P=12,021,246 P=11,021,246 
Additions (Note 10) 1,242,175 1,000,000 
Disposals (40,766) – 
Balance at December 31  P=13,222,655  P=12,021,246 

 
Available-for-sale financial assets pertain to investments in unquoted equity securities of the 
following: 

 
Investee Shares Interest Amount 
CPMI 98,040 2% P=10,980,480 
MEADA Rabrong Plc. (MEADA) 2,750 15% 1,242,175 
RIMANSI Mutual Solutions 

Insurance Agency, Inc. 
(RMSI) 20,000 14% 1,000,000 

   P=13,222,655 
 
In 2015, the Company sold its unquoted equity securities of All Nations for cash consideration 
amounting to P=25, 450. Loss from disposal recognized in relation to the sale of investment 
amounted to P=15,316 included under “Other expenses” in the statements of comprehensive 
income. 
 
The Company measures its available-for-sale financial assets at cost since its fair value cannot be 
reliably measured and are composed of unquoted equity securities. 
 
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, no provision for impairment loss was recorded by the 
Company for its available-for-sale financial assets. 
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8. Property and Equipment - net 
 

The rollforward analyses of this account follows: 
 

   2015   

 Land 

Computer/ 
Office 

equipment 

Office 
furniture and 

fixture 
Transportation 

equipment Total 
Cost      
Balance at January 1  P=3,895,346 P=1,039,085 P=143,075 P=856,000 P=5,933,506 
Reclassification to investment 

property (Note 9) (3,895,346) – – – (3,895,346) 
Additions – 209,488 111,244 – 320,732 
Balance at December 31 – 1,248,573 254,319 856,000 2,358,892 
Accumulated Depreciation      
Balance at January 1 – 892,785 113,906 385,200 1,391,891 
Depreciation – 127,727 25,013 171,200 323,940 
Balance at December 31 – 1,020,512 138,919 556,400 1,715,831 
Net Book Value P– P=228,061 P=115,400 P=299,600 P=643,061 
      
   2014   

 
Land 

(Notes 9 and 13) 

Computer/ 
Office 

equipment 

Office 
furniture and 

fixture 
Transportation 

equipment Total 
Cost      
Balance at January 1 P=– P=1,039,085 P=119,577 P=856,000 P=2,014,662 
Additions 3,895,346 – 23,498 – 3,918,844 
Balance at December 31 3,895,346     1,039,085 143,075 856,000 5,933,506 
Accumulated Depreciation      
Balance at January 1 – 652,608 88,515 214,000 955,123 
Depreciation – 240,177 25,391 171,200 436,768 
Balance at December 31 – 892,785 113,906 385,200 1,391,891 
Net Book Value P=3,895,346 P=146,300 P=29,169 P=470,800 P=4,541,615 
 
During September 2015, the Company acquired computer equipment under finance lease from 
Responsible Investments for Solidarity and Empowerment (RISE) Financing Company, Inc. 
amounting to P=209,488 for three years. Interest expense recognized in relation to acquisition 
amounted to P=8,466 included under “Interest expense” in the statements of comprehensive 
income.  
 
The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still in active use amounted to P=941,836 and 
P=707,785 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. 
 
The Company reclassified the land acquired in 2014 amounting to P3,895,346 from property and 
equipment to investment property.  The reclassification was due to the change in management’s 
intention over the property, in which the management decided to keep the property for capital 
appreciation purposes.   
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9. Investment property 
 

Company’s investment properties pertain to land held for capital appreciation.   
 

 2015 
Balance at January 1 P– 
Reclassification from property and equipment (Note 8) 3,895,346 
Additions 5,075,000 
Balance at December 31 P8,970,346 

 
In 2015, the Company acquired land is located at Corner Osmeña St. and Barcelona St., Lucena City 
with a land area of one hundred six (106) square meters.  Total fair value of the land was Five 
Million Pesos (P=5,000,000), equivalent to the purchase price of the property.  In addition, the 
Company paid P75,000 documentary stamp tax for the acquisition of the investment property, which 
was capitalized as part of the cost. 
 
The investment property acquired in 2014 has a fair value of P=4.03 million as of December 31, 
2015. The fair value of property is based on valuation performed by Architect Reynald Francis D. 
Guevarra, an accredited independent valuer with a recognized and relevant professional 
qualification and with recent experience in the location and category of the investment property 
being valued.  The appraised value of investment property is classified under Level 3 of fair value 
hierarchy.  This is determined using sales comparison approach.  In this approach, the value of the 
land is based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity.  The 
properties used as basis of comparison are situated within the immediate vicinity of the subject 
properties. 
 
For the investment property acquired during the year, the purchase price is believed to 
approximate its fair value at year-end. 
 
As at December 31, 2015, no investment property has been pledged as collateral or security for 
any of the Company’s liabilities.  
 
 

10. Other Assets 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2015 2014 
Creditable withholding taxes (CWTs)  P=3,389,886 P=2,957,759 
Supplies inventory 125,034 15,255 
Input VAT 34,292 58,091 
Advances for future stock subscription (Note 7) – 1,242,175 
 3,549,212 4,273,280 
Allowance for impairment losses (802,429) (807,275) 
 P=2,746,783 P=3,466,005 

 
CWTs pertain to unapplied taxes withheld on income payments and are creditable against income 
tax due.  The Company determined that the taxes withheld could be recovered in future periods. 
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Advances for future stock subscription pertain to investment in MEADA, a public limited company 
in Cambodia, of 2,750 shares amounting to US$27,500. In 2015, the advances were reclassified to 
available-for-sale financial asset upon incorporation of the investee (Note 7). 
 
Allowance for impairment loss provided pertains to creditable withholding taxes of the Company 
that have no supporting certificates as of reporting date. 

11. Trade and Other Payables 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2015 2014 
Trade payables:   
 Related parties (Note 13) P=129,421,617 P=117,585,923 
 Others 1,546,744 5,995,786 
Capiling fund 7,302,260 7,385,260 
Scholarship fund 1,205,882 1,338,815 
Payable to Alveo (Note 13) 702,336 1,884,936 
Accrued expenses 368,946 584,780 
Due to government agencies 338,700 668,541 
Other payables  1,165,113 1,890,729 
 P=142,051,598 P=137,334,770 

 
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 30 days term.  These consist 
mostly of premiums received from assured for payout to principal insurers and payables to CARD 
MBA for unpaid claims for PAID plans, Sagip Plan and CARD Care. 

 
Capiling fund pertains to fund accumulated for long-term Capiling Awardee incentive program 
intended for the Company’s microinsurance (MI) agents for PAID Plan sales.  Capiling fund is 
used as source of funds for MI agents who have already been agent for at least five years and have 
reached the sales target for the year.  These MI agents are entitled to this incentive program. 
 
Scholarship fund amounted to P=1,205,882 and P=1,338,815 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively.  In 2009, the Company and Pioneer Intercontinental Insurance Corporation (PIIC) 
agreed to sponsor a scholarship grant to all qualified children of CARD MBA members, 
contributing P=5 each for every PAID Plan purchased through CARD and/or the Company’s 
network.  Scholarship fund is given to scholars quarterly at P=3,000 each.  The scholarship fund 
will still be paid until fully utilized despite the termination of the PAID Plan. 
 
Payable to Alveo represents the remaining balance payable regarding the acquisition of land in 
2014. 
 
Accrued expenses consist of unpaid audit fee, selling costs and unpaid utility bills. 
 
Due to government agencies represents output VAT and withholding tax on compensation. 
 
Other payables consist of premiums payable to partners, payable to board members for incidental 
expenses, other payable to staff pertaining to tax refunds and finance lease payable. 
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12. Equity 
 

Capital Stock 
The roll forward analysis of the capital stock account follows: 

 
 2015 2014 
 Shares Amount Shares Amount 
Common Stock - P=500 par value    
Authorized  100,000 P=50,000,000 20,000 P=10,000,000 
Issued and outstanding:     
 At beginning of year 19,020 9,510,000 19,000 P=9,500,000 
 New capital infusion 7,468 3,734,000 – – 
Reclassification from DFFSS 8,824 4,412,000 20 10,000 
 At end of the year 35,312 P=17,656,000 19,020 P=9,510,000 

 
On August 11, 2014, the Company applied for an increase in authorized capital stock with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) from 20,000 to 100,000 shares. 
 
In 2014, the Company received additional deposits for subscription amounting to P=2,651,500 and 
has converted P=10,000 to capital.  The remaining P=4,412,000 deposits are for subscription on the 
proposed increase in authorized capital stock, approved by the Board last October 12, 2013.  As of 
December 31, 2014, the Company has 19,020 issued and outstanding shares amounting to 
P=9,510,000.  The Company has restricted 980 shares for future issuance upon election of 
independent board member.  On June 10, 2015, one share was issued upon electing additional 
board member. As of December 31, 2015, the 979 shares remain restricted for issuance to future 
board members. 

 
On April 24, 2015, SEC approved the increase in authorized capital stock from 20,000 to 100,000 
shares.  Upon approval, the Company transferred the deposits for stock subscription of P4,412,000 
to its “Capital Stock” account and issued additional shares amounting to P=3,734,000.  As of 
December 31, 2015, the Company has 35,312 issued and outstanding shares amounting to 
P17,656,000.   
 
Retained Earnings 
Stock dividends 
There were no stock dividend declarations in 2015 and 2014. 

 
Cash dividends 
The Company’s BOD approved and ratified the declaration of cash dividends as follows: 

 
 2015 2014 
Date of approval April 11 October 10 April 19 
Date of declaration April 11 October 10 April 19 
Date of payment April 16 November 3 April 24 
Number of stockholders as of 

dividend declaration 30 30 28 
Dividend per share P=150 P=75 P=150 
Total amount P=2,853,000 P=2,259,450 P=2,850,000 
Dividends paid P=2,853,000 P=2,259,450 P=2,850,000 
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13. Related Party Transactions 
 

Parties are related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or 
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions, or 
if the parties are subject to common control or common significant influence.  A related party may 
be an individual or a corporate entity. 

 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has transactions with related parties.  Significant 
transactions with related parties follow: 

 
December 31, 2015 

 
  Amount Outstanding Nature Terms Conditions 
Affiliates      
CPMI      
Due from affiliate  P=73,454,407 Payment  for PAID Plan, 

CARD Care & CCAP claims 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings                              P=475,479,724  
 Collections (432,295,695)  
Due to affiliate        17,868,986 Unremitted premium for CPMI 

products 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 691,296,031  
 Payments (643,156,667)  
Commissions receivable  4,067,896 Uncollected commission 

receivable 
On demand; non-interest 

bearing; 1-30 day term 
Unsecured 

 Billings 101,110,440     
 Collection (97,042,544)  
CARD MBA      
Due from affiliate      30,455,230 Premiums uncollected 

for CAMIA products 
from CARD MBA Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings  447,531,170  
 Collections (417,075,941)  
Due to affiliate  75,916,569 Claims unpaid to members who 

avail CAMIA products 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 833,681,636  
 Payments (757,765,067)  
Rent expense 187,263 – Rent incurred from office rental   
Commissions receivable  384,683 Uncollected commission 

receivable 
On demand; non-interest 

bearing; 1-30 day term 
Unsecured 

 Billings  384,683  
 Collections –  
CARD, Inc.      
Due from affiliate  2,901 Premiums uncollected 

for CAMIA products from 
CARD Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 6,936,728  
 Collections (6,933,827)  
Due to affiliate  84 Unpaid expenses incurred 

CARD Inc. 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 6,849  
 Payments (6,765)  
CARD Bank Inc.      
Cash  45,714,767 Various On demand; interest at 0.25% 

to 1.50% for regular savings 
deposit and 3.50% for cash 
equivalents 

Unsecured 
 Deposits 276,748,020  
 Withdrawals (231,033,253)  

Due from affiliate  529,970 Premiums uncollected 
for  CAMIA products from 
CARD Bank Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 10,643,111  
 Collections (10,113,141)  
Interest income 255,209 – Interest earned on time deposits 

and savings account 
On demand; 

interest at 1.50% to 6.00% 
Unsecured 

Long-term investment – 3,000,000 Placement of funds on long 
term deposits 

On demand; interest at 6.00%  

CARD SME      
Cash  4,179,284 Various On demand; interest at 1.50% 

to 3.50% 
Unsecured 

 Deposits 32,623,120  
 Withdrawals (28,443,836)  
Due from affiliate  21 Premiums uncollected 

for  CAMIA products from 
CARD SME. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 3,596,656  
 Collections (3,596,635)  
Due to affiliate  969 Unpaid expense incurred by 

CARD MRI for 
administration expense 

On demand; noninterest-
bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 3,695  
 Payments (2,726)  
Interest income 84,986 – Interest earned on time deposits 

and savings account 
On demand; interest at 1.50% 

to 3.75% 
Unsecured 

Short term investment – 3,214,996 Placement of funds on time 
deposits 

On demand; interest at 3.75% Unsecured 

      
      
(Forward)      
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  Amount Outstanding Nature Terms Conditions 
CMDI      
Due from affiliate  P=– Premiums uncollected 

for  CAMIA products from 
CMDI Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings P=73,252  
 Collections (73,252)  
Due to affiliate  20,062 Unpaid expense incurred by 

CARD MRI for 
administration expense 

On demand; noninterest-
bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 31,187  
 Payments (11,125)  
CARD BDSFI      
Due from affiliate  – Uncollected PAID Plan 

enrollment from BDSFI 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 110,435  
 Collections (110,435)  
Due to affiliate  – Unpaid expense incurred by 

CARD MRI for 
administration expense 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 142  
 Payments (142)  
CMIT      
Due from affiliate  – Uncollected PAID Plan 

enrollment from CMIT 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 26,742  
 Collections (26,742)  
CLFC      
Due from affiliate  – Uncollected PAID Plan 

enrollment from CLFC 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 15,399  
 Collections (15,399)  
Due to affiliate  14,26 Unpaid expense incurred by 

CARD MRI for 
administration expense 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 31,220  
 Payments (29,794)  
BotiCARD Inc.      
Due to affiliate  – Unpaid expense incurred by 

CARD MRI for 
administration expense 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 407  
 Payments (407)  
Rizal Rural Bank,Taytay Inc.      
Due to affiliate  472 Unpaid expense incurred by 

CARD MRI for 
administration expense 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing 

Unsecured 
 Billings 1,709  
 Payments (1,237)  
RMSI      
Due from affiliate  724,133  Uncollected premium for 

funeral care 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 1,119,231  
 Collection (395,098)  
Due to affiliate  582,140 Unremitted premium for 

funeral care 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings  7,366,615  
 Payments (6,784,475)  
Commissions receivable  652,081 Uncollected commission 

Receivables from funeral care 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings  1,228,505     
 Collections (576,424)  
RISE      
Due from affiliate  2,850 Uncollected PAID Plan 

enrollment from RISE 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing 
Unsecured 

 Billings 77,523  
 Collections (74,673)  

 
December 31, 2014 

 
  Amount Outstanding Nature Terms Conditions 
Affiliates      
CPMI      
Due from affiliate  P=20,104,895 Payment  for PAID Plan, 

CARD Care & CCAP  
claims 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings P=143,080,764  
 Collections (123,303,243)  
Due to affiliate  5,984,545 

Unremitted premium for CPMI 
products 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

Billings 121,442,023  
Payments (115,130,104)  

Commission receivable  14,448,055 
Uncollected commission 

receivable 
On demand; non-interest 

bearing; 1-30 day term Unsecured 
 Billings 24,758,796  

    Collections (10,310,741)  
CARD MBA      
Due from affiliate  58,607,411 Premiums uncollected 

for  CAMIA products 
from CARD MBA Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 185,215,946  
 Collections (136,991,322)  
Due to affiliate  117,258,550 

Claims unpaid to members who 
avail CAMIA products 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 281,270,618  
 Payments (269,542,454)  
Rent expense 131,316 – Rent incurred from office rental   
      
      
      
(Forward)      
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  Amount Outstanding Nature Terms Conditions 
CARD, Inc.      
Due from affiliate  P=663,523 Premiums uncollected 

for CAMIA products from 
CARD Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings P=10,201,778  
 Collections (9,571,255)  
Due to affiliate  4,065 

Unpaid expenses incurred 
CARD Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 233,087  
 Payments (235,264)  
CARD Bank Inc.      
Cash  9,830,385 

Various 

On demand; 
interest at 0.25% to 1.50% 
for regular savings deposit 
and 3.50% for cash 
equivalents Unsecured 

 Deposits 206,452,871  

 Withdrawals (198,808,738)  
Due from affiliate  47,318 Premiums uncollected 

for  CAMIA products from 
CARD Bank Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 5,933,272  
 Collections (5,885,954)  

Interest income 180,000 – 
Interest earned on time deposits 

and savings account 
On demand; 

interest at 1.50% to 6.00% Unsecured 

Long-term investment – 3,000,000 
Placement of funds on long 

term deposits 
On demand; 

interest at 6.00%  
CARD SME      
Cash  2,367,563 

Various 
On demand; interest at 1.50% 

to 3.50% Unsecured 
 Deposits 11,854,499  
 Withdrawals (9,736,907)  

Interest income 104,766 – 
Interest earned on time deposits 

and savings account 
On demand; interest at 1.50% 

to 3.75% Unsecured 

Short term investment – 3,760,555 
Placement of funds on time 

deposits 
On demand; 

interest at 3.75% Unsecured 
CMDI      
Due from affiliate  23,006 Premiums uncollected 

for  CAMIA products from 
CMDI Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 438,545  
 Collections (415,900)  
Due to affiliate  7,175 Unpaid expense incurred by 

CARD MRI for 
administration expense 

On demand; noninterest-
bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 10,031  
 Payments (21,054)  
CARD BDSFI      
Due from affiliate  4,010 

Uncollected PAID Plan 
enrollment from BDSFI 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 547,438  
 Collections (543,428)  
      
CMIT      
Due from affiliate  – 

Uncollected PAID Plan 
enrollment from CMIT 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 450,675  
 Collections (450,712)  
CLFC      

Due from affiliate  1,004 
Uncollected PAID Plan 

enrollment from CLFC 
On demand; 

noninterest-bearing Unsecured 
 Billings 173,646     
 Collections (172,642)     
BotiCARD Inc.      
Due from affiliate  802 

Uncollected PAID Plan 
enrollment from BotiCARD 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 266,886  
 Collections (266,834)  
Rizal Rural Bank,Taytay Inc.      
Due from affiliate  78,300 Uncollected PAID Plan 

enrollment from Rizal Rural 
Bank Taytay Inc. 

On demand; 
noninterest-bearing Unsecured 

 Billings 460,217  
 Collections (381,917)  

 
In September 2014, CAMIA, together with CARD MBA and Aniceta R. Alip, acquired a parcel of 
land with an area of two thousand thirty-nine (2,039) square meters (sqm) from Alveo Land 
Corporation (Alveo) described as Lot 1, Block 3, Phase 2 in Westborough Town Center, Brgy. 
Inchican, Silang, Cavite.  The parties mutually agreed their specific share of ownership of the 
property as follows:  
 
PARTICULARS CARD MBA CAMIA ANICETA R. ALIP TOTAL 
Lot Size (sqm) 1,700 139 200 2,039 
Purchase Price*  P=46,282,912 P=3,784,308 P=5,445,048 P=55,512,268 
Payments Made** 37,693,202 3,081,972 4,434,494 45,209,668 
Unpaid Balance *** 8,589,710 702,336 1,010,554 10,302,600 
*** inclusive of VAT and other capitalizable charges  
*** inclusive of reservation fee, 30% down-payment and 1st installment  
***inclusive of other charges  
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14. Retirement Plan 
 

The Company maintains a funded and formal noncontributory retirement plan - the CARD Multi-
Employer Retirement Plan - covering all regular employees.  The plan has a Projected Unit Cost 
(PUC) format and is financed by the Company.  The plan complies with the requirement of 
Republic Act No. 7641 and provides lump sum benefits upon retirement, death, total and 
permanent disability, involuntary separation (except for cause) or voluntary separation after 
completion of at least ten (10) years of service with the participating companies. 
 
Under the existing regulatory framework,  Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement 
pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, 
provided however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and 
other agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law.  The law does not require 
minimum funding of the plan.  The Company also provides additional post employment healthcare 
benefits to certain senior employees. 
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Changes in net defined benefit liability of funded funds are as follows: 
 

       2015       
  Net benefit cost in statement of income  Remeasurements in other comprehensive income   

 At January 1 
Current 

service cost 

Past 
service 

cost 
Net 

interest Subtotal 
Transfer from 

plan 

Return on 
plan assets 
(excluding 

amount 
included in 

net interest) 

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
experience 

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
changes in 

financial 
assumptions 

Actuarial 
changes 
arising 

experience Subtotal 
Contribution 
by employer 

At December 
31 

Present value of defined 
benefit obligation P= 6,103,267 P=364,142 P– P272,206 P=636,348 (P468,006) P– (P2,887,331) P1,720,219 P42,940 (P1,124,172) P–  P=5,147,437 
Fair value of plan assets (4,450,458) – – (205,583) (205,583) 468,006 84,502 – – – 84,502 (786,045) (4,889,578) 

 P=1,652,809 P=364,142 P– P66,623 P=430,765 P– P=84,502 (P2,887,331) P1,720,219 P42,940 (P=1,039,670) (P=786,045) P=257,859 
              
  Net benefit cost in statement of income  Remeasurements in other comprehensive income   

 At January 1 
Current 

service cost 

Past 
service 

cost 
Net 

interest Subtotal 
Transfer to 

plan 

Return on 
plan assets 
(excluding 

amount 
included in 

net interest) 

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
experience 

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
changes in 

financial 
assumptions 

Actuarial 
changes 
arising 

experience Subtotal 
Contribution 
by employer 

At December 
31 

Present value of defined benefit 
obligation P=7,077,393  P=597,194 P=– P=451,538 P=1,048,732 P=133,342 P=– P=1,520,681 (P=3,263,518) (P=413,363) (P=2,156,200) P– P=6,103,267 

Fair value of plan assets (2,838,660) – – (230,373) (230,373) (133,342) 162,969 – – – 162,969 (1,411,052) (4,450,458) 
  P=4,238,733  P=597,194 P=– P=221,165 P=818,359 P=– P=162,969 P=1,520,681 (P=3,263,518) (P=413,363) (P=1,993,231) (P=1,411,052)  P=1,652,809  
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The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement liability for the Company’s 
retirement plan are shown below: 

 
 2015 2014 
Discount rate 5.04% 4.46% 
Salary increase rate 10.00% 7.00% 
Average remaining working life 28.7 28.1 

 
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each 
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period, 
assuming if all other assumptions were held constant: 

 
 December 31, 2015 

 
Increase 

(decrease) 
Effect on defined 

pension plan 
Discount rate -100 basis points (P=888,260) 
 +100 basis points 1,123,073 
   
Salary rate +100 basis points 1,002,492 
 -100 basis points (822,143) 

 
The fair value of net plan assets by each class is as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Cash and cash equivalents P=1,990,547 P=1,749,920 
Equity instruments – – 
Investment in government bonds 2,235,026 2,041,425 
Investment in mutual funds 38,139 41,834 
Loans 516,339 493,111 
Others 109,527 124,168 
 P=4,889,578 P=4,450,458 

 
The Retirement Trust Fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-
market valuation.  The Company expects to contribute P=0.83 million to the defined pension plan in 
2016. 

 
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 
23.1 years.  

 
As of December 31, 2015 the Company does not expect to have future benefits payment from one 
(1) to ten (10) years.  

 
 
15. Income Tax 
 

The Company’s provision for income tax consists of: 
 

 2015 2014 
Current P=4,030,313 P=2,795,571 
Final 155,872 93,164 
Deferred (195,187)  342,684 
 P=3,990,998 P=3,231,419 
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The Company’s net deferred taxes relate to the tax effects of the following: 
 

 2015 2014 
Deferred tax assets recognized in profit or loss   
 Allowance for impairment losses P123,129 P=103,503 
 Unamortized past service cost 328,668 24,024 
 451,797 127,527 
Deferred tax liabilities recognized in profit or loss:   
 Pension asset 193,445 86,862 
 Documentary stamp tax 22,500 – 
 215,945 86,862 
Net deferred tax assets in profit or loss 235,852 40,665 
Net deferred tax asset recognized in OCI   
Remeasurement loss on net pension liability 270,803 582,704 
 P506,655 P=623,369 

 
The reconciliation of income tax at statutory income tax rate to effective income tax follows: 

 
 2015 2014 
Statutory income tax P4,049,727 P2,765,382 
Add (deduct) tax effects of:   
 Interest income already subjected to final tax (77,936) (46,581) 
 Nondeductible expense 20,661 512,618 
 Nontaxable income (1,454) – 
Provision for income tax P3,990,998 P3,231,419 

 
 
16. Capital and Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 
 

Governance Framework 
The primary objective of the Company’s risk and financial management framework is to protect 
the Company’s shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial 
performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities.  Key management recognizes 
the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place. 

 
The BOD approves the Company’s risk management policies and meets regularly to approve any 
commercial, regulatory and organizational requirements of such policies.  These policies define 
the Company’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit structure to ensure the appropriate 
quality and diversification of assets and specify reporting requirements. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Due to the short-term nature of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, commissions and 
trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables, their fair values approximate the carrying 
values as of the reporting date. 

 
Cash - due to the short-term nature of the account, the fair value of cash approximate the carrying 
amounts in the statements of financial position. 
 
Due to related parties - due to the short-term nature of the account, carrying amounts 
approximate their fair values. 
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Accounts and other payables - fair values of accounts and other payables approximate their 
carrying amounts in the statement of financial position due to the short-term nature of the 
transactions. 
 
The main purpose of the Company’s financial instruments is to fund its operations and capital 
expenditures.  The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are liquidity risk 
and credit risk.  The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for 
speculative purposes nor does it write options. 

 
Fair Value Hierarchy 
The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of the company’s investment property as at 
December 31, 2015.  
 

 2015 

 
Quoted Price in 
Active Markets 

Significant 
Observable Inputs 

Significant 
Observable Inputs Total 

Assets for which fair value is 
disclosed:     

 Investment property P=– P=– P=5,075,000 P=5,075,000 

 
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of 
financial instruments by valuation technique: 

 
Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair 

value are observable, either directly or indirectly 
Level 3: techniques which uses inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 

that are not based on observable market data 
 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet 
commitments associated with financial instruments. 

 
The Company seeks to manage its liquidity profile to be able to finance its capital expenditures 
and operations.  The Company maintains a level of cash deemed sufficient to finance operations.   

 
As part of its liquidity risk management, the Company regularly evaluates its projected and actual 
cash flows. 

 
 Net Financial Assets  
 2015 2014 
Financial Assets   
 Cash  P36,562,605 P=22,207,624 
 Accounts receivables 95,721,133 94,232,657 
 Commissions receivables 5,381,603 15,875,606 
 Interest receivable 542,989 352,251 
 Short-term investment 5,027,811 3,760,555 
 Long-term investment 3,000,000 3,000,000 
AFS financial assets 13,222,655 12,021,246 
 Advances – 1,242,175 
 159,458,796 152,692,114 

(Forward)   
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 Net Financial Assets  
 2015 2014 
Financial Liabilities   
Other financial liabilities   
 Trade payables P=129,421,617 P=123,581,709 
 Accrued expenses 368,946 584,780 
 Other payables 2,867,168 5,783,021 
 132,657,731 129,949,510 
 P26,801,065 P=22,742,604 

 
Management believes that the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk is minimal because the 
maturities of the financial liabilities, which is payable upon demand, matches the maturities of the 
financial assets. 
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. 

 
The Company’s receivables are actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit 
risk. 
 
The Company has adopted a no-business policy with customers lacking appropriate credit history 
where credit records are available. 

 
The Company manages the level of credit risk it accepts through a comprehensive credit risk 
policy setting out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the 
Company; setting up of exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties; invoking 
the right of offset where counterparties are both debtors and creditors; reporting of credit risk 
exposures; monitoring of compliance with credit risk policy; and reviewing of credit risk policy 
for pertinence and the changing environment.  In addition, receivables are monitored on an 
ongoing basis to manage the Company’s exposure to impairment losses. 

 
The table below shows the maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk for the components 
of its statements of financial position. 

 
 2015 2014 
Cash (excluding cash on hand amounting P=303,307 

and 262,680 in 2015 and 2014, respectively) P36,259,298 P=21,944,944 
Accounts receivables 95,721,133 94,232,657 
Commissions receivables 5,381,603 15,875,606 
Interest receivable 542,989 352,251 
Short-term investment 5,027,811 3,760,555 
Long-term investment 3,000,000 3,000,000 
 P145,932,834 P=139,166,013 

 
  



CARD MRI  insurance agency,  inc. Annual  Report   2015 CARD MRI  insurance agency, inc. Annual  Report   2015 47- 31 - 
 
 

*SGVFS017979* 

The credit risk is concentrated to the following customers: 
 

 Percentage 
Type of customer 2015 2014 
Affiliates 82.35% 42.86% 
Non affiliates 17.65% 57.14% 
 100% 100.00% 

Capital Management 
The Company treats equity as capital.  The primary objective of the Company’s capital 
management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital in order to support its business and 
maximize shareholder value. 

 
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in 
economic conditions.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.   
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company’s net equity follows: 

 
 2015 2014 
Capital stock P=17,656,000 P=9,510,000 
Unappropriated retained earnings 12,581,626 8,185,984 
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan (631,873) (1,359,642) 
Deposit for future stock subscription – 4,412,000 
 P=29,605,753 P=20,748,342 

 
 
17. Lease Commitment 
 

On September 8, 2014, the Company entered into a five  year operating lease agreement with 
CARD MBA with renewal terms included in the contracts.  Renewals are at the option of the 
lessee subject to a ten percent (10%) increase in monthly rental every renewal.  Rent expense 
included in the statements of comprehensive income in 2015 and 2014 amounted to P=187,263 and 
P=131,316, respectively.   
 
As of December 31, the amount of future minimum rentals payable for the existing contract is 
based on the remaining term of the contract, as follows: 
 

 2015 2014 
Within 1 year P=148,674 P=92,632 
More than 1 year but not more than 5 years 396,463 – 
 P=545,137 P=92,632 

18. Brokerage Agreement 
 

The Company has agreements with various insurance companies to: (1) be the exclusive 
distributor of Sagip Plan, PAID Plan and CARD Care; (2) collect all premiums due on all 
insurance directly solicited by and/or credited to the Company; and (3) remit premiums, taxes and 
charges collected for a policy issued by Insurance Company.  Under the terms of these 
agreements, the Company is entitled to remuneration equal to a percentage of the premiums 
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written, net of taxes.  Expenses incurred in connection with its brokerage services are for the 
Company’s account. 

 
Commission income derived from brokerage services amounted to P=50,844,506 and P=29,515,730 
in 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

 
 
19. Note to Statements of Cash Flows 
 

The Company’s noncash investing activity pertains to reclassification of land amounting to             
P=3,895,346 from property and equipment to investment property, due to change in management’s 
intention over the long-term purpose of the land. 
 

 
20. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 
 

The Company reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2015:  
 

a. Value added tax (VAT) 
 

At January 1  P=58,091 
Additional   393,097 
Utilized  (416,896) 
At December 31 (Note 12)  P=34,292 

 
b. Information on the Company’s importations 

The Company does not undertake importation activities. 
 

c. Documentary Stamps Tax 
The documentary stamps taxes paid in 2015 amounted to P75,000 for the acquisition of the 
investment property.  
 

d. Taxes and Licenses 
This includes all other taxes, local and national, including real estate taxes, licenses, and 
permit fees amounting to P=168,600 lodged under the caption ‘Taxes and Licenses’ under the 
‘Expenses’ section in the Company’s statement of comprehensive income. 

 
Local    
Business permits  P=34,614 
Community tax certificate  1,676 
Barangay clearance   500 
  36,790 
National    
Increase in stock capitalization  P=131,310 
BIR Registration fee  500 
  131,810 
  P=168,600 
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e. Withholding Taxes 
 

Details of withholding taxes follow: 
 

Expanded withholding taxes  P=521,003 
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits  179,884 
  P700,887 

 
f. Tax Assessments and Cases 

The Company has not been involved in any tax cases under preliminary investigation, 
litigation, and/or prosecution in courts or bodies outside the BIR. 
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CARD MRI INSURANCE AGENCY, INC. 
SCHEDULE OF ALL EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
UNDER PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2015 
 
 
PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS  
AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2015 

Adopted Not 
Adopted 

Not 
Applicable 

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements 
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics    

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary    

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards    

PFRS 1 
(Revised) 

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards 

   

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment in 
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate 

   

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time 
Adopters    

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative 
PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters     

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal 
of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters     

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans    
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment    

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations    
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based 
Payment Transactions    

PFRS 3 
(Revised) 

Business Combinations    

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts    
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee 
Contracts    

PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations    
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources    
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures    

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition    

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets 

   

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition 

   

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about 
Financial Instruments 

   

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial 
Assets    

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities    

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 
and Transaction Disclosures    



CARD MRI  insurance agency,  inc. Annual  Report   2015 CARD MRI  insurance agency, inc. Annual  Report   2015 51- 2 - 
 
 

*SGVFS017979* 

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS  
AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2015 

Adopted Not 
Adopted 

Not 
Applicable 

PFRS 8 Operating Segments    
PFRS 9 Financial Instruments    

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 9 
and Transition Disclosures 

   

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements    
PFRS 11  Joint Arrangements    
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities    
PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement    

Philippine Accounting Standards    

PAS 1 
(Revised)  

Presentation of Financial Statements    

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures    

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial 
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation    

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other 
Comprehensive Income    

PAS 2  Inventories    

PAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows    

PAS 8  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors 

   

PAS 10  Events after the Balance Sheet Date    

PAS 11  Construction Contracts    

PAS 12  Income Taxes    

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of 
Underlying Assets    

PAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment    

PAS 17  Leases    

PAS 18  Revenue    

Revised PAS 
19  

Employee Benefits    

 Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group 
Plans and Disclosures 

   

PAS 20  Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance    

PAS 21  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates    

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation    
PAS 23 
(Revised)  

Borrowing Costs    

PAS 24 
(Revised)  

Related Party Disclosures 
   

PAS 26  Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans    
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS  
AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2015 

Adopted Not 
Adopted 

Not 
Applicable 

PAS 27 
(Amended)  

Separate Financial Statements Not early adopted 

PAS 28 
(Amended)  

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures    

PAS 29  Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies    
PAS 31  Interests in Joint Ventures    
PAS 32  Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation    

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial 
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation    

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues    
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities    

PAS 33  Earnings per Share    
PAS 34  Interim Financial Reporting    
PAS 36  Impairment of Assets    

PAS 37  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets    

PAS 38  Intangible Assets    

PAS 39  Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement    

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition of 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities    

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of 
Forecast Intragroup Transactions    

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option    
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee 
Contracts    

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets    

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition    

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: 
Embedded Derivatives    

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items    
PAS 40  Investment Property    

PAS 41  Agriculture    

Philippine Interpretations    

IFRIC 1   Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and 
Similar Liabilities     

IFRIC 2  Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar 
Instruments    

IFRIC 4  Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease    
IFRIC 5  Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration 

and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds    
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS  
AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2015 

Adopted Not 
Adopted 

Not 
Applicable 

IFRIC 6  Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - 
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment 

   

IFRIC 7  Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 Financial 
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 

   

IFRIC 8  Scope of PFRS 2    
IFRIC 9  Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives    

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and PAS 39: 
Embedded Derivatives 

   

IFRIC 10  Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment    
IFRIC 11  PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions    
IFRIC 12  Service Concession Arrangements    
IFRIC 13  Customer Loyalty Programmes    
IFRIC 14  The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding 

Requirements and their Interaction 
   

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-14, 
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 

   

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate    
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation     
IFRIC 17  Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners     
IFRIC 18  Transfers of Assets from Customers     
IFRIC 19  Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments    
IFRIC 20  Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine    
IFRIC 21 Levies    
SIC-7  Introduction of the Euro     
SIC-10  Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating 

Activities 
   

SIC-12  Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities     
Amendment to SIC-12: Scope of SIC 12     

SIC-15  Operating Leases - Incentives     
SIC-21  Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets    
SIC-25  Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its 

Shareholders 
   

SIC-27  Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal 
Form of a Lease 

   

SIC-29  Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.     
SIC-31  Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services    

SIC-32  Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs     
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